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SUBMISSION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT 
by the Accounting Officer
Mr P.H. Seabi

The Gauteng Funding Agency’s Accounting Officer in compliance with Section 40 
of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 
1999) hereby submits the Annual Report for the the  2014/15 financial year to the 
Legislature, the Gauteng Treasury and the public. 

For the purpose of a concise account of GFA’s performance in 2014/15 financial 
year the annual report is divided into sections: 

Section 1: Executive Summary, provides a review of the GFA by the Member of the 
Executive Council (“MEC”).  

Section 2: The Organisational Overview outlines the area of responsibility of the GFA 
and it’s scope which determines the existence of the institution and its operations. 

Section 3: Financial Performance presents the annual financial statements of GFA 
for the financial year 2014/15. The section covers: 

• the Report of the Accounting Officer, 
• the Report of the Auditor-General, 
• the Statement of Financial Position, 
• the Statement of Financial Performance,
• the Statement of Changes in Net Assets,
• the Cashflow Statement, 
• the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements and
• the Report of the Audit Committee

Section 4: Annual Performance Report provides information on performance of 
each business unit against targets. This section reports on the targets achieved as 
planned in the annual performance plan of 2014/15. The section also explains the 
deviations that might have occurred and the reasons for those deviations. Finally, 

Section 5: Outlook for the coming year provides the key focus of 2015/16 financial 
year. 



Gauteng Funding Agency6

Section 1: Executive Summary



Annual Report 2014/15 7

In the 2014 Gauteng State of the Province Address, Premier Makhura announced a 
Ten Pillar Programme,  of transformation, modernisation and re-industrialise  to build 
a socially cohesive, economically inclusive City Region. 

The National Development Plan sets an annual national growth target of 5%. 
Significant government and private sector investment in infrastructure will help to 
address structural constraints to grow the economy as well as create much needed 
work for our people.  

The next three years the City Region Governments will together spend more than 
R100 billion on roads, houses, water, sanitation schools, clinics and hospitals. This sum 
does not include significant investment by the state owned enterprises in electricity 
supply and reticulation,  provision of potable water and rail station upgrades.

More resources are needed to fund further investments to improve public transport 
infrastructure, broadening the energy mix,  the airport city development, broadband 
connectivity and new mega cities.  On the 16th to 17th July 2015 Gauteng Province 
hosted the inaugural Gauteng Infrastructure Investment Conference (GIIC) which 
focused on strategic areas for public and private sector co-operation.

The Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency (GIFA) erstwhile the Gauteng Funding 
Agency (GFA) has been playing an important role in supporting GPG’s efforts to 
collaborate with private sector in infrastructure funding and development. 

GIFA has now presented the first seven projects to the potential funders to solicit 
investment.  In future, a basket of projects will be put out to the market twice  a year 

I would like to thank the CEO of GIFA Mr. Oupa Seabi for his leadership of the agency.   
I therefore present the 2014/15 Annual Report of Gauteng Funding Agency, which 
details the performance of the GFA and audited Annual Financial Statements as at 
31 March 2014. 

__________________________
B. Creecy, MEC
MEC for Finance, Gauteng Province
Date: 31 July 2015

FOREWORD:
Member of the Executive Council

The next three years 
the City Region 

Governments will 
together spend more 
than R100 billion on 
roads, houses, water, 
sanitation schools, 

clinics and hospitals.

“

”
Barbara Creecy
Member of Executive Council
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Section 2: Organisational Overview
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2.1 Mandate of the GFA
The GFA is registered as a trading entity of the 
Gauteng Provincial Treasury (“GPT”) in terms of 
Treasury Regulation 19.4.1. The mandate of the GFA 
is to develop economic infrastructure projects that 
are not financed within the fiscus, from project ideas 
to bankable state. Furthermore, the GFA facilitates 
and interacts with the investor community to raise 
alternative funding to finance those projects. 

2.2 Vision, Mission and Values

Vision
To ensure alternative funding for Gauteng’s strategic 
infrastructure projects.

Mission
To set up a central point of coordination for all 
strategic infrastructure projects in the province;

To identify bankable infrastructure projects through 
project filtration criteria and feasibility studies;

To explore various funding mix through research 
on local and international best practices in project 
finance;

To mobilise potential investors to support identified 
and approved infrastructure projects that are not 
funded through own Revenue Fund;   and

To monitor the implementation of infrastructure 
projects through successful contractual relationships 
between GPG departments and investors.
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Values
The values and principles that underpin the Gauteng Provincial Treasury, and thus the GFA, are 
predicated on the principles of Batho Pele and are;

Value What it means
Value Employees We attract, motivate and retain talented people through career path, 

developing skills and empowering our employees. We also help them 
perform at consistently high levels by encouraging their professional and 
personal development. We reward their performance, treat them fairly, 
equally and we aim to be an employer of choice.

Honesty and Integrity We will represent information transparently and truthfully, will honour our 
commitments; firmly adhere to a code of moral and ethical principles 
and will display professionalism in the workplace by being non-biased and 
objective.

Service Excellence We place high value on our stakeholders and strive to meet their 
expectations and requirements by offering consistently good customer 
service, in both roles of support and / or oversight.

Team-work We align, collaborate and communicate within and across the business 
units to meet the needs of our customers/stakeholders. We are committed 
to information and knowledge sharing.

Respect and Dignity We will treat others with sensitivity, respect and have consideration for their 
uniqueness and personality differences and act within the law.

Accountability We take full responsibility and ownership of our actions, by not passing the 
buck. We will have a positive, professional and productive approach to our 
work.
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2.3 Good governance and legislative responsibilities

The GFA promotes good governance practices and it is guided by a plethora of relevant legislation and 
policies such as but not limited to the following:

• Public Finance Management Act, 1999
• Treasury Regulations
• Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000
• Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000
• Labour Relations Act, 1995
• Pubic Service Amendment Act, 2007
• Skills Development Act, 1998
• Batho Pele Policy
• Occupational Health and Safety Policy, 2003

2.4 Strengthening Accountability

2.4.1 GFA Stakeholders
In its daily operations the GFA interacts with a number of stakeholders who play a role in one way or 
the other in the business of the agency. The table below outlines the various stakeholders of the GFA 
and the nature of the relationship:

Table: Stakeholder List

Stakeholders Relationship

Gauteng Provincial Departments Clients and project owners

Gauteng Municipalities Clients and project owners

Gauteng Provincial Treasury GFA is a trading entity of Gauteng Provincial Treasury

Legislature/ Portfolio Committee Ensures oversight role

Development Finance Institutions and Foundations Potential funders of projects

Private Sector e.g private banks, financiers, etc Potential investors of projects

Construction industry Project implementors 

2.4.2 Monitoring Mechanisms and Implementation of the Mandate
The GFA’s Strategic Planning and Monitoring Performance Information Framework outlines the 
mechanisms and processes for monitoring the implementation of the GFA’s mandate. The framework 
provides guidelines for performance information management.

The table below outlines levels of monitoring the performance implementation of the GFA and 
performance:

Table: Levels of Performance Monitoring

Level Monitor Mechanism

MEC Legislature / 
Portfolio Committee

Strategic plan, Annual Performance Plan, Quarterly Reports, 
Annual Report

Head of the GFA MEC Strategic plan, Annual Performance Plan, Budget, In-year 
Monitoring (IYM), Quarterly Reports, Annual Report

Senior Managers Head of the GFA Operational plans, budget, monthly reports, quarterly reports, 
annual reports
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2.5 GFA Services
The service offered by the GFA to its clients is project development support and facilitation of 
funding opportunities to finance infrastructure projects off-budget or off-balance sheet of the 
project owners. The primary clients or beneficiaries of GFA’s services are GPG departments and 
their agencies and municipalities. Over the past years the clients have been:

• Department of Economic Development
• Department of Infrastructure Development
• Department of Roads and Transport
• Department of Sports, Recreation, Arts & Culture
• Department of Education
• Gauteng Growth and Development Agency
• West Rand District Municipality
• Sedibeng District Municipality

The GFA supports these client institutions in preparing projects to a point where they can be 
funded and implemented. For GFA to deliver an efficient and effective service to its clients it has 
developed a Service Delivery Model for project preparation. The service delivery model explains 
process flow or steps of project preparation.

Table: Process-fl ow for project preparation

Project Preparation Stages Activities

1. Project Definition Defining the objectives and scope of the project.

2. Pre-feasibility Development of project concept into a business plan containing high 
level estimates of key project parameters.

3. Full Project Feasibility Improving the accuracy of all project parameters by undertaking 
comprehensive technical studies.

4. Project Structuring Creation of appropriate technical and commercial structures for a 
project to attract the right mix of financing.

5. Transaction Tangible agreements to procure the services of implementors to deliver 
agreed goods.

6. Post-implemetation Ensure that all parties to the project agreement understand their 
respective obligations.
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Member of the Executi ve Council
(MEC)

Head of GFA
(CEO)

Head: Corporate Services
• Informati on 

Technology
• Finance
• Human Resources
• Faciliti es

Programme 1:
Project Development 

Programme 2:
Structured Finance

Head:
Strategy, Monitoring and 

Evaluati on

Head:
Communicati on, 

Marketi ng & Stakeholder 
Management

2.6 Organisation of the GFA
The GFA is organised in Business Units, within 3 programmes, which are responsible for carrying 
out the mandate and the strategic goals of the organisation. The GFA has five Business Units 
that are managed by the senior managers or Heads of Business Units. All Heads of Business Units 
report to the Head of the GFA who in turn is accountable to the MEC.

The diagram below illustrates the GFA’s and it illustrates the reporting lines from the MEC down to 
the Business Unit heads. 

Programme 3:
Administrati on

Head:
Structured Finance

Head:
Project Development
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Section 3: Financial Performance
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The objective of the 
GFA is to accelerate 

delivery of key 
infrastructure projects 

in support of the 
GPG's Ten Pillar 

Programme of radical 
Transformation, 

Modernisation and 
Re-industrialisation

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

1 Introduction
The purpose of this report is to highlight the performance of the Gauteng Funding Agency 
(GFA) for the reporting period of 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 in compliance with Section 40 
of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999) and 
specific financial matters for the period under review. 

1.1 Overview of the operations of the GFA

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF 2014/15
There are two significant events that impacted on the organisation in the 2014/15 
financial year: 

New Administration
In 2014, the Fifth Administration of the Gauteng Provincial Government (GPG) came into 
being. The Premier in his inaugural State of the Province Address (SOPA) announced the 
imperatives of the new administration, which comprise a Ten Pillar Programme consisting 
Transformation, Modernisation and Re-Industrialisation (referred to as TMR).  

Infrastructure development will play a critical role towards achieving these strategic 
objectives, augmenting the importance of the success of the GFA.  Due to this, the GFA 
revised its strategic plan to ensure alignment to the new imperatives.

Approval for the Establishment of a Provincial Government Component 
The Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency (‘the GIFA’) was promulgated by the 
President of the Republic of South Africa in the Government Gazette No. 38088 on 17 
October 2014 as a government component of the GPG in terms of the Public Service 
Act, 1994, amending Part B of Schedule 3.  The objective of the GIFA is to accelerate 
delivery of key infrastructure projects in support of the GPG’s Ten Pillar Programme of 
radical Transformation, Modernisation and Re-industrialisation (TMR) through project 
development, sourcing and structuring of alternative financing and forming strategic 
partnerships with the private sector to enhance the outcomes of the GIFA. 

The GIFA exists as a named legal entity, but has not been fully established as at 31 March 
2015.  The GIFA will be established with the intention of transferring the operations of the 
GFA into it, and then disestablishing the GFA as a trading entity as per Treasury Regulation 
19.9 (Closure of a trading entity).

As agreed in a transitional arrangement with GPT, all GIFA’s procurement, contracts and 
payments are to be construed through the GFA until such time that GIFA is fully established 

 Mr. P.H. Seabi
Head of Gauteng Funding Agency

“

”
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and GFA is disestablished.  The planned date of transfer for disestablishment of GFA is 30 June 2015.

The financial statements of the GFA have been prepared on a liquidation basis, in line with GRAP 105, “Transfer 
of functions between entities under common control”.  

PROJECTS UNDERTAKEN IN 2014/15 FINANCIAL YEAR 
The GFA’s project pipeline in 2014/15 was made up of 16 projects, being in different stages as at year end:

• 4 projects at feasibility phase; 
• 9 projects at post-feasibility phase; and

• 3 projects at implementation phase 

Figure 1: Overview of project phases as at 31 March 2015

In 2015/16 the GFA will roll out the market engagement strategy and plan to promote bankable projects to 
potential investors. The market engagement strategy contemplates promoting projects via investor roadshows and 
events such as conferences and summits, which may be local or international.  

The GFA’s project pipeline in 2014/15 was made up of 16 projects and indicates that the GFA’s approach and focus 
have moved significantly towards working mainly on economic projects, whereas social and economic projects 
across different sectors were taken on in prior years.  All projects sourced in the year under review are economic 
projects, which will, going forward, account for the largest share of the pipeline.  Since sourcing alternative funding 
options is one of GFA’s main objectives, this approach will ensure that projects taken on by GFA have a high 
probability of attracting private funding in their own standing.  

2 Overview of the financial results  of GFA
2.1 Receipts

The GFA receives an annual transfer payment from Gauteng Provincial Treasury (GPT), the controlling entity 
of GFA.  This transfer payment is used to cover the operating costs of the GFA for the year and amounts to 
R50 million.  

During the latter part of the financial year, a second transfer payment of R25 million was received from 
Gauteng Treasury to create the Project Preparation Facility (PPF) in the transitional period of establishing the 
GIFA.

Other income amounts to R5 million, mainly comprising interest on leasehold deposit and bank balance, as 
well as rental sub-lease income. 

As at present, the GFA does not charge departments and local governments for the feasibility services 
rendered.  However, as from 1 April 2015, the PPF is used to fund all feasibility projects.  Once such projects 
are financed, the total cost of feasibility from GFA will be capitalised and recovered as part of the project 
cost in order to replenish the PPF.  It is not possible at this stage to estimate the amount of recoveries that 
would realise in 2015/2016. 

2.2 Expenditure

The budget of the GFA is not made available publicly and thus no comparatives between budgeted and 
actual activities are given in the financial statements.  The budget of the GFA is prepared on a cash basis 
and presented to the GPT by economic classification linked to performance outcome objectives.  It covers 
the fiscal period from 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015.

In 2014/15, GFA has spent 95% of its R50 million budget.  Under expenditure was mainly due to the Funding 

Feasibility Phase

Post Feasibility Phase

Implementation Phase
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Fair that did not take place, postponed system maintenance and the HR recruitment budget that was not 
fully utilised. 

No unauthorised expenditure or fruitless and wasteful expenditure occurred in the year under review.

Irregular expenditure of R13,2 million was identified for the 2014/2015 financial year as a result of non-
compliance with supply chain management policy.  No disciplinary actions or steps have been taken by 
management as at the date of this report.  

Expenditure per programme was as follows: 

R'000 R'000

Programme Appropriated Actual
Spending

Project Development and Finance 23 695 23 674

Administration (including Stakeholder Management, 
Strategy, Finance and HR) 26 305 23 919

TOTAL 50 000 47 593

2.3 Virements

Virements were done between programmes in order to ensure that cost savings from administrative 
programmes are channeled to the Project Development and Structured Finance Units.  The under expenditure 
referred to was after taking the virements into account.

For the 2014/2015 financial year, a rollover of R32 million was requested.  This includes the unspent allocation 
for PPF, interest income and a contractual commitment for one of the feasibility projects.  Other commitments 
will be funded from the GFA cash reserves from prior years. 

3. Future Plans of the GFA
In the new financial year, the GIFA will be fully established and the GFA disestablished by transferring all assets, 
liabilities, contractual obligations and accounting balances into the financial records of GIFA.  As per the 
transitional arrangement, operations will continue for GIFA through GFA until 30 June 2015 (date of establishment/
disestablishment).  For purposes of this report, however, we will refer to the future plans of GFA, although it 
encompasses the activities of GIFA.

There are a number of key plans that the GFA would put in place in the new financial year:

3.1 Sustainable flow infrastructure projects
The GFA plans to ensure that there is a sustainable flow of strategic infrastructure projects that the GFA would 
develop and issue to the market for alternative funding.  The GFA will identify these projects through a central 
point for coordination that involves provincial planning and budgeting processes.  

3.2 Project preparation facility (PPF)
The GFA will ensure that the Project Preparation Facility (PPF) is fully operational and utilised according 
to policies and procedures ensuring proper governance thereof.  The PPF will be utilised to fund project 
development. 

3.3 Mobilise potential investors
The GFA plans to mobilise potential investors through various activities such as investor roadshows to fund 
bankable infrastructure projects. 

3.4 Procurement and contracting advice and support
The GFA plans to provide advice and support to GPG departments and local governments with procurement 
and contracting for strategic infrastructure projects. 

3.5 Monitoring and evaluation
The GFA will monitor the implementation and evaluation of the socio-economic impact of the projects in line 
with the provincial priorities.

4. Public Private Partnerships
No new PPP’s were implemented in the period under review, although there is a strong possibility of PPP’s to be 
implemented in the new financial year. 
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5. Discontinued activities
There are no discontinued and new or proposed activities to be reported for the 2014/2015 financial year, but the 
GFA will be disestablished at 30 June 2015, when all assets, liabilities and surpluses will be transferred to the new 
government component, Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency (GIFA).  

6. Supply Chain Management (SCM)
No unsolicited bid proposals were concluded for the year under review.  
Irregular expenditure of R13,2 million was identified for the 2014/2015 financial year as a result of non-compliance 
with supply chain management policy and compliance will thus be a focus area for the next financial period.  

GFA’s greatest SCM challenge is the turn-around time for tenders, which was addressed by compiling a 
comprehensive demand plan for the year, which will be updated and managed intensively in terms of procurement 
vs. the demand plan on a monthly basis. 

7. Gifts And Donations
No gifts and donations were received in kind from related or non-related parties.

8. Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury
The GIFA as a government component will use Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) as its reporting 
framework, which is in line with the GFA reporting framework. 

9. Events after the reporting date
In the 2014/2015 financial year, a provincial government component, called Gauteng Infrastructure Financing 
Agency (GIFA) was proclaimed in terms of the Public Service Act, 1994, amending Part B of Schedule 3, issued 
under GNR 69 GG 38088 of 17 October 2014.

The GIFA exists as a named legal entity, but has not been fully established as at 31 March 2015.  The GIFA has been 
established with the intention of transferring all operations of the GFA into it, and then disestablishing the GFA as a 
trading entity as per Treasury Regulation 19.9 (Closure of a trading entity).

The core business of GFA and GIFA is the same, but the financial statements have been prepared with reference 
to GRAP 105 (Transfer of function between entities under common control).  

All assets, liabilities, funds and surpluses will be transferred to GIFA at carrying value as at 30 June 2015, which is the 
planned date of transfer for disestablishment of GFA and establishment of GIFA. 

A transitional arrangement was approved by the Head of Department of Gauteng Treasury for all GIFA’s procurement, 
contracts and payments to be construed through the GFA until such time that GIFA is fully established and GFA 
is disestablished.  All activities of GIFA that was paid for by GFA have been recorded as part of the GFA financial 
statements.  

10. Acknowledgements
I wish to express special appreciation to the MEC, Ms. Barbara Creecy, for her guidance and support.  I would also 
like to thank the GFA staff for their tireless contributions in ensuring that the GFA achieves its set targets and in striving 
to become a center of excellence in project development and finance. 

11. Conclusion
The GFA working environment has experienced a number of changes and challenges over the past year.  These 
challenges were overcome and a revised organisational structure was approved to appoint the skills and capacity 
necessary to function optimally in delivering its mandate. 

12. Approval and sign off
The Annual Financial Statements set out on page 26 have been approved by the Accounting Officer. 

___________________
Mr. P.H.  Seabi
Accounting officer
Gauteng Funding Agency
Date: 31 July 2015
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Cluster 02

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

Audit Committee And Attendance
The Audit Committee consists of the external Members listed hereunder and is 
required to meet a minimum of at least two times per annum as per provisions of 
the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act Number 1 of 1999) (PFMA). In terms 
of the approved Terms of Reference (GPG Audit Committee Charter), six meetings 
were held during the current year, i.e. four meetings to consider the Quarterly 
Performance Reporting (financial and non-financial) and two meetings to review 
and discuss the Annual Financial Statements and the Auditor-General of South 
Africa’s (AGSA) Audit and Management Reports.

Non-Executive Members

Name of Member
Number of 
Meetings 
Attended

Date Appointed / Resigned

Mr. Japie du Plessis (Chairperson) 06
Ms. Tshidi Molala 05 Appointed 1 October 2014
Mr. Siphile Buthelezi 04 Appointed 1 October 2014
Ms. Maemili Ramataboe 01 Contract ended 30 September 2014
Ms. Halima Nazeer 01 Contract ended 30 September 2014

Executive Members

Compulsory Attendees
Number of 
Meetings 
Attended

Date Appointed / Resigned

In terms of the GPG Audit Committee Charter, offi cials listed hereunder are obliged to 
attend meetings of the Audit Committee:
Mr. Oupa Seabi (Accounting Offi cer) 04
Ms. Rianda Kruger (CFO) 05

The Audit Committee noted that the Accounting Officer did not attend all six 
scheduled Audit Committee meetings. However, a letter of apology was tendered 
with a duly authorised representative attending on his behalf. Therefore, the Audit 
Committee is satisfied that the Agency adhered to the provisions of the GPG Audit 
Committee Charter in relation to ensuring that there is proper representation for the 
Accounting Officer. 

The Committee hereby also confirms that the Audit Committee met with the 
Senior Management of the Agency, Internal Audit and the AGSA, individually and 
collectively to address risks and challenges facing the Agency. A number of in-
committee meetings were held to address control weaknesses and deviations 
within the Agency. 

Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from 
section 38(1)(a) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee 
also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit 
Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this Charter and has 
discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal control and Information and Communication 
Technology (ICT) Governance

The Audit Committee has observed that the overall control environment of the 
Agency has deteriorated during the year under review. The audit opinion issued by 
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the AGSA deteriorated from a clean audit to unqualified with findings on predetermined objectives and 
compliance with legislation.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the progress with respect to the ICT Governance in line with the 
ICT Framework issued by the Department of Public Services and Administration.  Management did not 
design and implement formal controls over information technology (IT) systems to ensure the reliability 
of the systems and the availability, accuracy and protection of information, as most of the IT processes 
were not documented. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that more attention must be allocated 
to the implementation of the Disaster Recovery Plan and the Business Continuity Plan.  This continued 
to be a high risk for the Agency. 

The Agency did implement the recommendations made by the Audit Committee.

Internal Audit 
Internal audit was effective during the financial year. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the Internal 
Audit Plan represents a clear alignment with the key risks, has adequate information systems coverage, 
and a good balance across the different categories of audits, i.e. risk-based, mandatory, performance, 
computer and follow-up audits.

The Audit Committee has noted considerable improvement in the communication between the 
Executive Management, the AGSA and the Internal Audit Function, which has strengthened the 
Corporate Governance initiatives within the Agency.

The Audit Committee wishes to stress that in order for the Internal Audit Function to operate at optimal 
level as expected by the Audit Committee, the shortage in human resources and skills should be 
addressed. 

Risk Management
Progress on the Agency’s risk management was reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.  
The Audit Committee is satisfied that the actual management of risk is receiving attention, although 
there are areas that still require improvement.  Management should take full responsibility for the entire 
Enterprise Risk Management process to even further enhance the performance of the Agency.

Forensic Investigations
No forensic investigations were requested for the Agency during the financial year under review.

The quality of quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act 
The Audit Committee is not satisfied with the content and quality of financial and non-financial quarterly 
reports prepared and submitted by the Accounting Officer of the Agency during the year under review. 
Action plans to address the AGSA’s findings for 2013/14 indicated that these findings were resolved, but 
the AGSA reported repeat findings in 2014/15.

Evaluation of the Annual Financial Statements
The Audit Committee has:

• Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements  to be included in the 
Annual Report with the AGSA and the Accounting Officer;

• Reviewed the Audit Report of the AGSA;
• Reviewed the AGSA’s Management Report and Management’s response thereto; 
• Reviewed the Agency’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions; and 
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit. 

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts the AGSA’s conclusions on the Annual Financial 
Statements and is of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read 
together with the report of the AGSA.

One-on-One meetings with the Accounting Officer
The Audit Committee has met with the Accounting Officer for the Agency to address unresolved issues.

One-on-One meetings with the Executive Authority
The Audit Committee has met with the Executive Authority for the Agency to apprise the MEC on the 
performance of the Agency.
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Auditor-General of South Africa
The Audit Committee has met with the AGSA to ensure that there are no unresolved issues. 

_________________
Mr. Japie du Plessis
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 31 July 2015
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
to the Gauteng Provincial Legislature

Report on the Financial Statements 
 Introduction
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Gauteng Funding Agency set out on 

pages 26 to 51, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 
2015, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets 
and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 Accounting offi cer’s responsibility for the fi nancial statements
2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 

financial statements in accordance with the South African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the 
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and 
for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

 Auditor-general’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my 

audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. 
Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the trading entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for my audit opinion.

 Opinion 
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the Gauteng Funding Agency as at 31 March 2015 and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the SA 
Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

 Emphasis of matters
7. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these 

matters.

 Disestablishment of Gauteng Funding Agency and transfer of functions
8. As disclosed in note 28 to the annual financial statements, the Gauteng Funding 

Agency (GFA) as a trading entity is in a process of being disestablished per Treasury 
regulation 19.9. A new government component was approved which is called Gauteng 
Infrastructure Financing Agency (GIFA) and has not been fully established at year end.  
A transitional arrangement was approved by the Head of Gauteng Treasury, for all 
GIFA’s procurement, contracts and payments to be construed through GFA until such 
time that GIFA is fully established and GFA disestablished. The planned date of the 
transfer of functions and disestablishment of GFA is 30 June 2015. 

 Restatement of corresponding fi gures
9. As disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 

2013/14 have been restated as a result of an error discovered during 2014/15 relating 
to intangible assets in the financial statements of the Gauteng Funding Agency at, and 
for the year ended, 31 March 2014.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
10. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice 

issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information 
against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, 
compliance with legislation and internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings 
as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. 
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

 Predetermined objectives
11. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information for the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the 
Gauteng Funding Agency for the year ended 31 March 2015:
• Programme 1: Project Development on page 53

• Programme 2: Structured Finance on page 54

• Programme 3: Administration on page 55

12. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

13. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in 
accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance 
was consistent with the planned programmes. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and 
targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the 
National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

14. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate 
and complete.

15. The material findings in respect of the selected programmes are as follows:

 Programme 1: Project Development
 Usefulness and reliability of reported performance information
16. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information 

for  Programme 1: Project Development

 Programme 2: Structured Finance
 Usefulness of reported performance information
17. The FMPPI requires that performance targets must be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required 

level of performance. A total of 27% (3/11) of the targets were not specific.

 Reliability of reported performance information
18. I did not identify any material findings on the reliability of the reported performance information for Programme 

2: Structured Finance

 Programme 3: Administration
 Usefulness of reported performance information
19. The FMPPI requires that indicators must have clear definitions so that data can be collected consistently 

and is easy to understand and use. It must further be possible to validate the processes and systems that 
produced the indicator, meaning that the indicator must be verifiable. A total of 30% (6/20) of the indicators 
were not well defined.

20. The FMPPI requires performance targets must be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level 
of performance and that targets must be measurable. A total of 70% (14/20) of the targets were not specific 
and measurable.

 Reliability of reported performance information
21. I did not identify any material findings on the reliability of the reported performance information for Programme 

3: Administration.

 Additional matters
22. I draw attention to the following matters:
 
 Achievement of planned targets
23. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 52 to 57 for information on the achievement of the 

planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in the context of the material findings on 
the usefulness of the reported performance information for the selected programmes reported in paragraphs 
15 to 23 of this report.

 Adjustment of material misstatements
24. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing on the reported 

performance information for Programme 2: Structured Finance and Programme 3: Administration. As 
management subsequently corrected only some of the misstatements, I identified material findings on the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information.
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 Compliance with legislation
25. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the Gauteng Funding Agency had complied with applicable 

legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on 
material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in 
terms of the PAA, are as follows:

 Procurement and Contract Management
26. Contracts were awarded to bidders based on preference points that were not allocated and/or calculated in 

accordance with the requirements of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act and its regulations.

27. Contracts were awarded to bidders based on points given for criteria that were not stipulated in the original 
invitation for bidding, in contravention of Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(a) and the Preferential Procurement 
Regulations.

 Human Resource Management
28. Funded vacant posts were not filled within 12 months as required by Public Service Regulation 1/VII/C.1A.2.

 Annual Financial Statements
29. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed 

financial reporting framework as required by section 40(1) (a) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of non-
current assets, current assets, irregular expenditure and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the 
submitted financial statement were subsequently corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving 
an unqualified audit opinion.

 Expenditure Management
30. The accounting officer did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by section 

38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 9.1.1.

31. Contractual obligations and money owed by the trading entity were not settled within 30 days or an agreed 
period, as required by section 38(1)(f) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 8.2.3.

 Internal control
32. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, the performance report 

and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control 
deficiencies that resulted in the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

 Leadership
33. Accounting officer did not exercise adequate oversight responsibility regarding financial reporting, compliance 

with laws and regulations and related internal controls which resulted in instances of non-compliance with 
Treasury Regulations, Preferential Procurement Regulations, Public Service Regulations and the PFMA.

34. Accounting officer did not implement effective human resource management to ensure that adequate 
and sufficiently skilled resources are in place and that performance is monitored, as accounting officer did 
not ensure that vacancies are filled and that Senior Management Service members are assessed on their 
competency.

35. Accounting officer did not develop and monitor the implementation of action plans to address internal 
control deficiencies, as repeat findings were significant in the current year.

 Financial and performance management
36. Management did not prepare accurate and complete financial statements that are supported and 

evidenced by reliable information. The financial statements were subject to material amendments resulting 
from the audit.

37. Management did not monitor compliance with applicable laws and regulations, as several instances of non-
compliance with regulatory requirements were identified during the audit.

38. Management did not design and implement formal controls over information technology (IT) systems to 
ensure the reliability of the systems and the availability, accuracy and protection of information, as most of 
the IT processes were not documented. 

Johannesburg
31 July 2015
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NOTE R’000
2015

R’000
Restated 

2014

ASSETS
Current assets 94 034 76 337
  Cash and cash equivalents 4 16 619 76 270
  Project Preparation Facility Cash 4 75 000 -
  Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 5 2 415 67
Non-current assets 11 349 8 169
  Receivables from exchange transactions 7 7 450 3 212
  Intangible assets 8 1 735 2 137
  Property, plant and equipment 9 2 164 2 820

TOTAL ASSETS 105 383 84 506

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 2 408 13 843
  Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 12  2 174 13 454
  Leave pay accrual 13 234 389
Non-current liabilities 133 127
  Leave pay provision 13 133 127

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2 541 13 970

NET ASSETS
Net assets and reserves 102 842 70 536
Accumulated surplus 102 842 70 536

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 105 383 84 506

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2015
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NOTE R’000
2015

R’000
2014

REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
  Transfer payment 16 50 000 50 000
  PPF transfer payment 16 25 000 -
REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
  Other income 17 4 955 950

Staff costs 18 (13 861) (12 787)
Depreciation and amortisation 19 (1 517) (1 064)
Project development fees (23 351) (22 096)
Other expenditure 20 (8 949) (9 089)

 SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 32 277 5 914

Statement of Financial Performance
for the period ended 31 March 2015
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R’000
Accumulated 

Surplus

R’000
Total Net 
Assets

Balance as at 1 April 2013 (restated) 64 600 64 600
Total changes during the period 5 936 5 936
Surplus for the year ended 31 March 2014 5 914 5 914
Movement of Surplus after restatement of useful lives of assets                                                                 22 22

Balance as at 31 March 2014 (restated) 70 536 70 536

Balance as at 1 April 2014 70 536 70 536
Total changes during the period 32 306 32 306
Surplus for the year ended 31 March 2015 32 277 32 277
Movement of Surplus after revaluation of assets 29 29

Balance as at 31 March 2015 102 842 102 842

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
for the period ended 31 March 2015
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NOTE R’000
2015

R’000
2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 79 591 51 154
  Transfer payment 50 000 50 000
  PPF Transfer payment 25 000 -
  Interest received 3 065 204
  Rental sub-lease income received 1 526 950

Payments (63 809) (37 640)
  Employee costs (16 201) (12 264)
  Payments to Suppliers (47 608) (25 376)

NET CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 22 15 782 13 514

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (233) (241)
  Acquisition of intangible assets  (212) (2 239)
  Proceeds from sale of assets 12 -
NET CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (433) (2 480)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15 349 11 034
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 76 270 65 236

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4 91 619 76 270

Cash Flow Statement 
for the period ended 31 March 2015
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1. General Information
The Gauteng Funding Agency (GFA) is a trading entity of the Gauteng Provincial Treasury (GPT) and was established with the 
approval of the Gauteng Provincial Treasury and the Executive Committee of the Province.  

The GFA is governed by the policies and procedures of the GPT and its financial statements are accounted for in terms of the 
Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) as from 1 April 2013.  The GFA is audited by the Auditor-General 
and has to comply with the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999). 

2.   Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below and have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis Of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
(GRAP), including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB), on 1 April 2014 
– refer to note 2.2 for more detail.   This is in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied consistently in all 
material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. 

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial 
statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended 
by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued.  

The financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting, using the historical cost convention.  Except as 
otherwise disclosed, these accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the previous year.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GRAP requires the use of some critical accounting estimates.  It 
also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the accounting policies.  The areas that required 
judgment in the process of application are disclosed in policy note 2.20.

The financial statements of the GFA have been prepared on a liquidation basis, in line with GRAP 105, “Transfer of functions 
between entities under common control”.  All GFA assets, liabilities and surpluses will be transferred to the new government 
component, Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency (GIFA) at net book value as shown in the GFA annual financial statements.  
All contracts will be ceded to GIFA.  The transfer will take place on 30 June 2015.  (Also refer to note 28)

2.2 Significant Accounting Policies And Disclosure

The GFA has prepared its financial statements in compliance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) as from 1 April 
2014. The list of Standards of GRAP, interpretations and directives and the impact on adoption are as follows:

A. Standards, interpretations and amendments to these adopted by the entity.
Applicable Standards of GRAP that the entity is required to apply and that are applicable to the operations of the entity:

Standards Description

GRAP 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the basis for presentation of general purpose fi nancial statements, to 
ensure comparability both with the entity’s fi nancial statements of previous periods and with the fi nancial statements of other 
entities. To achieve this objective, this Standard sets out overall considerations for the presentation of fi nancial statements, 
guidelines for their structure and minimum requirements for their content. The recognition, measurement and disclosure of specifi c 
transactions, other events and conditions are dealt with in other Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 2 Cash Flow Statements

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to require the provision of information about the historical changes in cash and cash 
equivalents of an entity by means of a cash fl ow statement, which classifi es cash fl ows during the period from operating, investing 
and fi nancing activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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GRAP 3 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the criteria for selecting and changing accounting policies, together with 
the accounting treatment and disclosure of changes in accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and corrections of 
errors. The Standard is intended to enhance the relevance and reliability of the entity’s fi nancial statements and the comparability 
of those fi nancial statements over time and with the fi nancial statements of other entities.

Disclosure requirements for accounting policies, except those for changes in accounting policies, are set out in the Standard of 
GRAP on Presentation of Financial Statements.

GRAP 4 The Effects Of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe how to include foreign currency transactions and foreign operations in the 
fi nancial statements of an entity and how to translate fi nancial statements into a presentation currency.

GRAP 9 Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting treatment of revenue arising from exchange transactions 
and events. The primary issue in accounting for revenue is determining when to recognise revenue. Revenue is recognised when 
it is probable that future economic benefi ts or service potential will fl ow to the entity and these benefi ts can be measured reliably. 
This Standard identifi es the circumstances in which these criteria will be met and, therefore, revenue will be recognised. It also 
provides practical guidance on the application of these criteria. 

GRAP 13 Leases

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe, for lessees and lessors, the appropriate accounting policies and 
disclosures to apply in relation to leases.

GRAP 14 Events After the Reporting Date

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe:

a. when an entity should adjust its fi nancial statements for events after the reporting date; and

b. the disclosures that an entity should give about the date when the fi nancial statements were authorised for issue and about 
events after the reporting date.

The Standard also requires that an entity should not prepare its fi nancial statements on a going concern basis if events after the 
reporting date indicate that the going concern assumption is not appropriate.

GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting treatment for property, plant and equipment so that the 
users of fi nancial statements can discern information about an entity’s investment in its property, plant and equipment and the 
changes in such investment. The principal issues in accounting for property, plant and equipment are the recognition of the assets, 
the determination of their carrying amounts and the depreciation charges and impairment losses to be recognised in relation to 
them.

GRAP 19 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to defi ne provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets, identify the 
circumstances in which provisions should be recognised, how they should be measured and the disclosures that should be made 
about them. The Standard also requires that certain information be disclosed about contingent liabilities and contingent assets in 
the notes to the fi nancial statements to enable users to understand their nature, timing and amount.

GRAP 21 Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the procedures that an entity applies to determine whether a non-cash-
generating asset is impaired and to ensure that impairment losses are recognised. The Standard also specifi es when an entity 
would reverse an impairment loss and prescribes disclosures.

GRAP 23 Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers)

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe requirements for the fi nancial reporting of revenue arising from non-
exchange transactions, other than non-exchange transactions that give rise to an entity combination. The Standard deals 
with issues that need to be considered in recognising and measuring revenue from non-exchange transactions, including the 
identifi cation of contributions from owners.

The Standard differentiates between conditions and restrictions. Only for conditions attached to a non-exchange transaction may 
a liability be recognised, as the conditions are not met at reporting date.

GRAP 25 Employee Benefi ts

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting and disclosure for employee benefi ts.
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Interpretations of the Standards of GRAP that the entity is required to apply and that are applicable to the operations of the entity:

Interpretations Description

IGRAP 1 Applying the Probability Test on Initial Recognition of Revenue

IGRAP 3 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

IGRAP 13 Operating Leases – Incentives

IGRAP 14 Recognised Accounting Practice Evaluating The Substance Of Transactions Involving The Legal Form Of 
A Lease

IGRAP 16 Intangible Assets - Website Costs

Directives issued and effective that the entity is required to apply and that are applicable to the operations of the entity:

Directives Description

Directive 1 Repeal of Existing Transitional Provisions in, and Consequential Amendments to, Standards of GRAP

Directive 2 Transitional Provisions for the Adoption of Standards of GRAP by Public Entities, Municipal Entities and 
Constitutional Institutions

Directive 5 Determining the GRAP Reporting Framework

Directive 7 The Application of Deemed Cost on the Adoption of Standards of GRAP

Directive 9 Transitional Provisions for the Adoption of Standards of GRAP by Trading Entities

GRAP 26 Impairment of Cash-generating Assets

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the procedures that an entity applies to determine whether a cash-
generating asset is impaired and to ensure that impairment losses are recognised. The Standard also specifi es when an entity 
would reverse an impairment loss and prescribes disclosures.

GRAP 31 Intangible Assets

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting treatment for intangible assets that are not dealt with 
specifi cally in another Standard of GRAP. This Standard requires an entity to recognise an intangible asset if, and only if, specifi ed 
criteria are met. The Standard also specifi es how to measure the carrying amount of intangible assets and requires specifi ed 
disclosures about intangible assets.

GRAP 100 Discontinued Operations

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to specify the presentation and disclosure of discontinued operations. In particular, the 
Standard requires the results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of fi nancial performance with 
additional disclosures provided in the notes to the fi nancial statements.

GRAP 104 Financial Instruments

Objective: This Standard prescribes recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements for fi nancial instruments. 
Financial instruments are broadly defi ned as those contracts that result in a fi nancial asset in one entity and a fi nancial liability 
or residual interest in another entity. A key distinguishing factor between fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities and other assets 
and liabilities, is that they are settled in cash or by exchanging fi nancial instruments rather than through the provision of goods or 
services.



Gauteng Funding Agency34

B. Standards of GRAP approved, but for which the Minister of Finance has not yet determined an effective date, that entities 
may consider in formulating an accounting policy:

Standards Description

GRAP 20 Related Party Disclosures

Objective: The objective of this Standard is to ensure that a reporting entity’s fi nancial statements contain the disclosures necessary 
to draw attention to the possibility that its fi nancial position and surplus or defi cit may have been affected by the existence of related 
parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties.

GRAP 32 Standard of GRAP on Service Concession Arrangements : Grantor

Objective: The objecti ve of this Standard is to prescribe the accounti ng for service concession arrangements by the grantor, a public sector 
enti ty. 

GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables

Objective: The objecti ve of this Standard is to prescribe accounti ng requirements for the recogniti on, measurement, presentati on and 
disclosure of statutory receivables.

IGRAP 17 Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession Arrangements Where a Grantor Controls a 
Signifi cant Residual Interest in an Asset

Standards of GRAP, interpretations, directives, amendments to standards and amendments to interpretations that have been issued 
by the ASB and are effective for the period beginning on or after 1 April 2015, which might be relevant to the operations of GFA:

Standards Description

GRAP 18 Segment Reporting

Objective: The objecti ve of this Standard is to establish principles for reporti ng fi nancial informati on by segments. 
The disclosure of this informati on will: 
a. enable users of the fi nancial statements to better understand the entity’s past performance, to evaluate the nature and 

fi nancial effects of the activities in which it engages and the economic environments in which it operates; 
b. identify the resources allocated to support the major activities of the entity and assist in making decisions about the allocation 

of resources; and 
c. enhance the transparency of fi nancial reporting and enable the entity to better discharge its accountability obligations. 

GRAP 105 Transfer of Functions between Entities Under Common Control

Objective: The objecti ve of this Standard is to establish accounti ng principles for the acquirer and transferor in a 
transfer of functi ons between enti ti es under common control. 
Directive 11 Changes in Measurement Bases following Initial Adoption of Standards of GRAP

Objective: The objective of this Directive is to permit an entity to change its measurement bases following the initial adoption 
of Standards of GRAP. The change is based on the principles in the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors. This Directive should therefore be read in conjunction with the Standard of GRAP on Accounting 
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

NOTE:  GFA applied GRAP 105 partly, as it would be in effect for the next financial period, when GFA will be 
transferred to the new government component, Gauteng Infrastructure Financing Agency as at 30 June 2015. 
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C. Standards of GRAP, interpretations, directives, amendments to standards and amendments to interpretations issued by the 
ASB and that are effective but not applicable to GFA:

Standard Description

GRAP 5 Borrowing Costs

GRAP 6 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

GRAP 7 Investments in Associates

GRAP 8 Interests in Joint Ventures

GRAP 10 Financial Reporting In Hyperinfl ationary Economies

GRAP 11 Construction Contracts

GRAP 12 Inventories

GRAP 16 Investment Property

GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget information in Financial Statements

GRAP 27 Agriculture

GRAP 103 Heritage Assets

IGRAP 2 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities

IGRAP 4 Practice Rights to Interests Arising From Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental 
Rehabilitation Funds

IGRAP 5 Applying the Restatement Approach under The Standard of GRAP on Financial Reporting in 
Hyperinfl ationary Economies

IGRAP 6 Loyalty Programmes

IGRAP 7 The Limit on a Defi ned Benefi t Asset, Minimum funding Requirements and their Interaction

IGRAP 8 Agreements for the Construction of Assets from Exchange Transactions

IGRAP 9 Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners

IGRAP 10 Assets Received From Customers

IGRAP 11 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities

IGRAP 12 Jointly Controlled Entities – Non-Monetary Contributions by Ventures

IGRAP 15 Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services

Directive 3 Transitional provisions for high capacity municipalities

Directive 4 Transitional provisions for medium and low capacity municipalities

Directive 6 Transitional provisions for revenue collected by the South African Revenue Service (SARS)

Directive 8 Transitional provisions for Parliament and Provincial Legislatures

Guide 1 Guideline on Accounting for Public Private Partnerships

IFRS 4 (AC 141) Insurance Contracts

IFRS 6 (AC 143) Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

IFRIC 12 (AC 445) Service Concession Arrangements

SIC – 25  (AC 425) Income Taxes-Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders

SIC – 29  (AC 429) Service Concession Arrangements – Disclosures
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D. Standards of GRAP, interpretations, directives, 
amendments to standards and amendments to 
interpretations that have been issued by the ASB and 
are effective for the period beginning on or after 1 
April 2015, which are not applicable to the operations 
of GFA:

Standard Description

GRAP 106 Transfer of Functions between Entities not 
Under Common Control

GRAP 107 Mergers

2.3 Functional And Presentation Currency
All amounts have been presented in the currency of the 
South African Rand (ZAR), which is also the functional 
currency of the entity.  

2.4 Rounding
Unless otherwise stated all financial data have been 
rounded off to the nearest one thousand (R’000).

2.5 Foreign Currency Translation
Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at 
the reporting date.  Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation at year-end exchange rates are 
recognised in the statement of financial performance.

2.6 Impairment Of Non-Cash-Generating Assets 
The GFA reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 
intangible assets at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets are 
impaired. 

If an indication is identified, the GFA estimates the 
recoverable service amount of the asset in order to 
determine the amount of the impairment, if any.  

The recoverable service amount of an asset is the higher 
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.  

Value in use is the present value of the asset’s remaining 
service potential, and is determined by using the 
depreciated replacement cost approach. The 
replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the 
asset’s gross service potential. This cost is depreciated 
to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may 
be replaced either through reproduction (replication) 
of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross 
service potential. The depreciated replacement cost 
is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost 
of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated 
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to 
reflect the already consumed or expired service potential 
of the asset.

If the recoverable service amount of an asset is 
determined to be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable 
service amount. The related impairment is recognised as 

an expense in surplus or deficit. 

Where a change in the underlying circumstances 
indicates that a previously recognised impairment has 
subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset 
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
service amount. Such reversal is limited to the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment been recognised for the asset. The related 
reversal of the impairment is recognised in surplus or 
deficit. 

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential associated with 
the item will flow to the GFA and the cost or fair value of 
the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment are recognised using 
the cost model.  Items are measured initially at cost 
and after initial recognition, stated at historical cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

When an item of property, plant and equipment is 
acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its 
fair value as at date of acquisition.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement 
of financial performance during the financial period in 
which they are incurred. 

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of 
assets to residual values over its expected useful lives 
using the straight-line basis.  Estimated useful lives are 
as follows:

Computer equipment 3 to 8 years
Offi ce equipment 3 to 10 years
Offi ce furniture 5 to 10 years
Audio visual equipment 3 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements 8 years

Residual values, remaining useful lives and depreciation 
methods are reviewed annually and adjustments are 
made if appropriate.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately 
to its recoverable service amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable service 
amount.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when 
no future economic benefits or service potential are 
expected from its use or disposal.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount 
and are recognised in the statement of financial 
performance. 
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2.8 Intangible Assets 
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset 
without physical substance.  An asset is identifiable if it 
either: 

a. is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or 
divided from the GFA and sold, transferred, licensed, 
rented or exchanged, either individually or together 
with a related contract, identifiable asset or liability, 
regardless of whether the GFA intends to do so; or 

b. arises from contractual or other legal rights, excluding 
those granted by statue, regardless of whether those 
rights are transferable or separable from the GFA or 
from other rights and obligations. 

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that 
future economic benefits or service potential that 
are attributable to the asset will flow to the GFA and 
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured 
reliably. 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. 

When an intangible asset is acquired at no cost, or 
for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date 
of acquisition.

After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried 
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Costs associated with the acquisition of computer 
software are recognised as intangible assets.  

Computer software is amortised over their expected 
useful lives using the straight-line basis.  Estimated 
useful life:

Intangible assets (general software) maximum 1 year
Intangible assets (software 
specifi cally developed for GFA)

4 years

The remaining useful lives and amortisation method 
are reviewed annually and adjustments are made if 
appropriate.  

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount 
and are recognised in the statement of financial 
performance. 

2.9 Leasehold Improvements 
Leasehold improvements expenditure is capitalised 
and depreciated over the original lease period of five 
years plus the extended lease period of three years.  The 
amount being depreciated is net of the tenant allowance 
paid to the entity, which reduces the capitalised cost 
of the leasehold improvements.  The tenant allowance 
paid to the entity did not include VAT, as the GFA is not 
registered for VAT purposes. 

2.10 Financial Instruments
The GFA classifies its financial instruments based on 
the purpose for which the financial instruments were 
acquired. Management determines the classification of 
its financial instruments at initial recognition.

The GFA recognises a financial instrument in its 
statement of financial position when it becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial 
instruments are measured initially at fair value, including 
transaction costs.  

GFA recognises financial assets using trade date 
accounting.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
method, less accumulated impairment losses. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
method. 

Short-term receivables and payables are not discounted 
where the initial credit period granted or received is 
consistent with terms used in the public sector, either 
through established practices or legislation.

For financial instruments measured at amortised cost, a 
gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the 
financial instrument is derecognised, and through the 
amortisation process. 

A financial asset is derecognised only when:

a.  the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, are settled or waived;

b.  GFA transfers to another party substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; 
or

c.  GFA, despite having retained some significant risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has 
transferred control of the asset to another party and 
the other party has the practical ability to sell the 
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is 
able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without 
needing to impose additional restrictions on the 
transfer. In this case, GFA shall:

(i)  derecognise the asset; and

(ii)  recognise separately any rights and obligations 
created or retained in the transfer.

GFA shall remove a financial liability (or a part of a 
financial liability) from its statement of financial position 
when, and only when, it is extinguished — i.e. when 
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled, expires or waived.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset 
and the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial position when the GFA currently has a legally 
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts 
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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The statement of financial position includes financial 
assets classified as financial assets at amortised cost.    

Financial assets at amortised cost are non-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market. They are included 
in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 
months after the reporting date. These are classified 
as non-current assets. The GFA’s financial assets at 
amortised cost comprise ‘Receivables’ and ‘Cash and 
cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position. 
Details included in note 2.11 and 2.12 respectively.

The statement of financial position includes financial 
liabilities classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are non-derivative 
financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market. The GFA’s 
financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise ‘Trade 
payables’ in the statement of financial position. Details 
included in note 2.13. 

2.11 Receivables From Exchange Transactions
Receivables comprise rental deposit paid, as well as 
receivables due from other Gauteng Departments 
and Local Government institutions emanating from co-
funding agreements and other arms-length transactions.  
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 

A provision for impairment of receivables is established 
when there is objective evidence that the GFA will not be 
able to collect all amounts due according to the original 
terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties 
of the receivable, probability that the receivable will 
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default 
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators 
that the receivable is impaired. 

The amount of the provision is the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original 
effective interest rate. The impairment is provided for by 
reducing the carrying amount of the asset directly and 
is recognised in the statement of financial performance. 

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the 
financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment 
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the 
carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that 
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the 
carrying amount would have been had the impairment 
not been recognised. Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are reversed directly and recognised 
in the statement of financial performance. 

2.12 Cash And Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balance 
and petty cash held.

Cash and cash equivalents are recognised initially at fair 
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method.

Interest earned on the bank balance does not accrue 
to the GFA but to the Revenue Fund of the Gauteng 
Provincial Government.  For the 2014/2015 financial 
year, GFA requested to retain the interest earned.  This 
was approved by Gauteng Provincial Treasury (GPT).

2.13 Trade Payables
Trade payables comprise accruals for services that have 
been acquired in the ordinary course of business.  

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value 
and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method.

2.14 Compensation Of Employees
The accounting policy in terms of the compensation 
of employees is in line with the policy of the Gauteng 
Provincial Treasury, and is as follows:

a) Short-Term Employee Benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are 
expensed in the statement of financial performance 
in the year in which it occurs. 

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a 
present or constructive obligation are recognised 
and disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
This is limited to a leave pay accrual as set out in 
note 16. 

Salaries and wages shown in the statement of 
financial performance comprise payments to 
employees (including leave entitlements, thirteenth 
cheque and performance bonuses).

b) Post-Retirement Benefits
Employer contributions are expensed in the 
statement of financial performance.  

No provision is made for retirement benefits in the 
financial statements of the GFA, or in the financial 
statements of the parent department.  Any potential 
liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements of 
the National Revenue Funds and not in the financial 
statements of the employer department.  This policy 
is in line with the Gauteng Provincial Treasury’s policy. 
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c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits such as severance packages 
are recognised as an expense in the statement of 
financial performance.  

d) Other long-term employee benefits
Other long-term employee benefits (such as 
capped leave) are recognised as expenditure in the 
statement of financial performance.

2.15 Key Management Personnel
Compensation paid to key management personnel is 
included in the disclosure for related parties. 

2.16 Revenue From Exchange Transactions
An exchange transaction is one in which the GFA 
receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, 
and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in 
the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other 
party in exchange.

The GFA recognises revenue when the amount of 
revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable 
that future economic benefits or service potential will 
flow to the entity.  

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis 
using the effective interest method. When a receivable 
is impaired, the GFA reduces the carrying amount to its 
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate of 
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount 
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is 
recognised using the original effective interest rate. 

2.17 Transfer Payments And Donations (Revenue From 
Non-Exchange Transactions)

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not 
exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, 
the GFA either receives value from another party without 
directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, 
or gives value to another party without directly receiving 
approximately equal value in exchange.

Revenue received from transfer payments and 
donations are recognised as revenue to the extent that 
the GFA has complied with any of the criteria, conditions 
or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent 
that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been 
met, a liability is recognised.

As the GFA satisfies the present obligation recognised as 
a liability, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability 
and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that 
reduction.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions comprises the 
fair value of a transfer payment received or receivable 
from the Gauteng Provincial Treasury. 

The GFA received a transfer payment from Gauteng 
Provincial Treasury to fund its operating expenditure 
which is recognised in full as revenue.

2.18 Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases. 

Payments made under operating leases (net of any 
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the 
statement of financial performance on a straight-line 
basis over the period of the lease. 

Receipts from operating leases (net of any incentives 
paid to the lessee) are recognised in the statement of 
financial performance on a straight-line basis of the 
period of the lease.

The lease for the building is classified as an operating 
lease and payments made under the operating lease 
are charged to the statement of financial performance 
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.  The 
difference between actual lease payments and the 
amount recognised is shown as part of current liabilities.

A lease deposit is held by the landlord as collateral 
for damages and amounts owed by the GFA.  The 
lease deposit can be applied to such damages and 
outstanding amounts at the end of the lease period.

The sub-lease of the ground floor of the building is 
classified as an operating lease and receipts from the 
operating sub-lease are recognised in the statement of 
financial performance on a straight-line basis over the 
period of the lease.  The difference between actual 
lease payments and the amount recognised is shown 
as part of current liabilities, and the difference between 
actual sub-lease receipts and the amount recognised is 
shown as part of current assets.

The lease commitment and sub-lease receivable for 
future years are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.

2.19 Commitments 
Contracted commitments (except for the lease of the 
building) to be paid after 1 April 2015 are not recognised 
in the statement of financial position as a liability or as 
expenditure in the statement of financial performance, 
but are included in the disclosure notes.  

These commitments are linked to specific service delivery 
contracts and are payable in future years.  

2.20 Key Areas Of Judgment In Applying Accounting 
Policies

The following key areas of judgment were required in 
preparation of the financial statements:

a) The estimated useful lives of assets are based on 
its expected useful lives and are measured against 
the industry norms.

b) The recoverability of any financial assets, having to 
make provisions in cases where recoverability might 
be questionable.
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2.21 Unauthorised Expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure in excess of 
allocated funds or expenditure not in accordance with 
the purpose of the GFA. 

When confirmed unauthorised expenditure is recognised 
as an asset in the statement of financial position, until 
such time as the expenditure is either approved by 
the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible 
person or written off as irrecoverable.   

Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is 
derecognised from the statement of financial position 
when the unauthorised expenditure is approved and the 
related funds are received. 

Where the amount is approved without funding it is 
recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial 
performance on the date of approval.  

2.22 Fruitless And Wasteful Expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure which 
was made in vain and would have been avoided had 
reasonable care been exercised.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as 
expenditure in the statement of financial performance 
according to the nature of the payment and not as 
a separate line item on the face of the statement of 
financial performance. If the expenditure is recoverable 
it is treated as an asset until it is recovered from the 
responsible person or written off as irrecoverable. 

2.23 Irregular Expenditure
Irregular expenditure is expenditure other than 
unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention 
of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of 
any legislation applicable to GFA, including the Public 
Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999. 

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in 
the statement of financial performance. If the relevant 
authority does not condone the expenditure it is 
treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as 
irrecoverable.

2.24 Budget Information 
The budget of the GFA is not made available publicly 
and thus no comparatives between budgeted and 
actual activities are given.  The approved budget of 
the GFA is prepared on a cash basis and presented by 
economic classification linked to performance outcome 
objectives. It covers the fiscal period from 01 April 2014 
to 31 March 2015.

2.25 Related Parties
The GFA, being a trading entity of the Gauteng 
Treasury, is related through this relationship, to all other 
GPG Departments and entities, as well as National 
Government Departments.

Management are those persons responsible for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 
entity, including those charged with the governance of 
the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances 
where they are required to perform such functions.  

Close members of the family of a person are considered 
to be those family members who may be expected 
to influence management, or be influenced by 
management in their dealings with the entity. 

Only transactions with related parties not in arm’s length 
or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed. 

2.26 Subsequent Events
Events after the reporting date, are those events both 
favourable and unfavourable that occur between 
the reporting date and the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue.  GFA shall only adjust 
the amounts recognised in its annual financial statements 
to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date for 
those events that provide evidence of conditions that 
existed at the reporting date.
 
3. Financial Risk Management
3.1. Financial Risk Factors
The GFA’s activities expose it to some financial risks, most 
of which are managed through the procurement and 
payment processes.  The GFA did not have direct access 
to its bank account, and thus cash management was 
not performed at GFA but at GPT.  

Risk management is the responsibility of GFA 
management and is monitored by a central team within 
Gauteng Provincial Treasury.  The GFA risk policies and 
processes are based on the approved GPT policies, 
which are adapted to the specific GFA environment and 
adopted by the Head of GFA.  

The Gauteng Provincial Treasury has written principles 
for overall risk management, as well as written policies 
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, 
interest rate risk and credit risk.  These include guidelines 
on investment of excess liquidity.  As a trading entity of 
the Gauteng Provincial Treasury, these principles apply 
to the GFA.

The most significant financial risks are related to reporting 
(inaccurate financial information that might result 
in inaccurate reporting and not meeting reporting 
deadlines in terms of PFMA) and financial systems 
(payment systems not aligned to business processes).  
The risk of reporting was mitigated by the implementation 
of an independent financial package, enabling the GFA 
to record financial information on an accrual basis. 

3.2. Market Risk 

Fair Value Interest Rate Risk 
The GFA has an interest-bearing asset, being the rental 
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deposit.  Interest is earned and capitalised every year 
at a rate of prime minus 2%, compounded annually in 
arrears.  

Exposure to market interest rates is limited to interest 
earned on the rental deposit and to interest payable on 
late settlement of accounts, which is governed by the 
30-day payment period of the GPG.

3.3. Credit Risk 

Credit risk was managed on a departmental basis.  GFA 
is not exposed to credit risks, as it is not allowed to borrow 
as per the PFMA.  

Although the GFA does have its own bank account, 
Gauteng Provincial Treasury performs a central cash 
management function and deposits excess moneys 
with banks and financial institutions.  

The interest bearing rental deposit is governed by the 
contractual agreement that all interests accrue at prime 
less 2% at the end of each year.  Interest accrued is 
added to the deposit and becomes payable at the 
date of return of the deposit. 

Maximum Exposure To Credit Risk 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 
is the carrying value of each financial asset mentioned 
in the notes to follow.

Receivables Pledged As Security 
The GFA does not hold any collateral as security. 

Credit Quality Of Financial Assets Neither Past Due Nor 
Impaired 
The credit quality of both non-current and current 
receivables is high.  With GPT being the parent department 

of the GFA, the financial asset (claim receivable) can be 
offset against future refund payments for salary payments 
(GFA refunds GPT on a monthly basis for salaries paid on 
its behalf). 

The receivable from the Department of Finance, as well 
as the debt relating to the co-funding agreement with 
the City of Johannesburg are governed by contractual 
agreements and as per management’s assessment 
thereof, not at risk of being defaulted.

The deposit and interest capitalised can be offset against 
future rental payments. 

Receivables Past Due But Not Impaired 
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as 
follows: 

The deposit and capitalised interest becomes payable 
at the end of the lease period, taking extensions into 
consideration. 

3.4 Liquidity Risk 
For the GFA, prudent liquidity risk management implies 
maintaining sufficient cash to meet its commitments.  
To a certain extent, the Gauteng Provincial Treasury 
through its cash management programme covered this.  
However, the GFA has the responsibility to limit spending 
and commitment of funds to the approved budget/
transfer payment.
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Maturity analysis

Financial liability Due in less 
than a year

Due in two 
to fi ve years Total

Trade Payables 2 408 - 2 408

4.   Cash And Cash Equivalents

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Cash and cash equivalents 16 619 76 270

Project preparation facility cash 75 000 -

91 619 76 270

Cash and cash equivalents represent money held in the bank account of the 
Gauteng Funding Agency (GFA), as well as the balance of petty cash held. 
Interest earned on the bank balance did not accrue to the GFA but to the 
Revenue Fund of the Gauteng Provincial Government. 

5.  Current Receivables From Exchange Transactions     
R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Straight-lining receivable 92        67
Staff debt 47 -
Co-funding receivable: City of Johannesburg 2 000              -
Gauteng Provincial Treasury:  Salary claim receivable 132 -
Gauteng Department of Finance: Rent & salary 
receivable 144 -

2 415 67

The GFA sub-lets the ground floor to the GPG DAV center in an arms-length 
transaction. 

The co-funding agreement with the City of Johannesburg runs over a 3 year 
period, with the following payments as per the contract:

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Less than one year (due 30 June 2015) 2 000 -
More than one year, not greater than fi ve years 4 000 -

6 000 -

6.  Future Rental Sub-Lease Receivables
The GPG DAV center leases office space under a non-cancellable contract 
from GFA.  Minimum lease receivable on non-cancellable operating leases 
are as follows:

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Less than one year 1 583 1 466
More than one year, not greater than fi ve years - 1 583

1 583 3 049

The current lease agreement expires on 31 March 2016.  GFA sub-leases 
the ground floor to the GPG DAV center.  The income from the DAV center 
sub-lease is disclosed under “Other income” and in line with the main lease 
contract, escalates by 8% per annum.
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7.  Non-Current Receivables From Exchange Transactions

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Deposits held 2 229 2 229

Interest receivable 1 221 983

Co-funding receivable: City of Johannesburg 4 000              -

7 450 3 212

Deposits held represents the leasehold deposit paid, with interest receivable being interest accrued on the deposit 
held as per the contract stipulations. The lease deposit is held by the landlord as collateral for damages and amounts 
owed by the GFA at the end of the lease period.

Co-funding receivable represents a co-funding agreement between GFA and City of Johannesburg Metropolitan 
Municipality (COJ) for the feasibility studies done on a waste treatment project.  The COJ will pay the debt to GFA in 
three annual installments of R2m each. The first payment is due 30 June 2015.

8.  Intangible Assets
No intangible assets were pledged as security.

R’000
2015

R’000
Restated 2014

Cost Accummulated 
Amortisation

Carrying 
Value

Cost Accumulated 
Amortisation

Carrying 
Value

Accounting & general software 628 628 - 542 542 -
Monitoring & evaluation system 2 296 561 1 735 2 155 18 2 137

2 924 1 189 1 735 2 697 560 2 137
 

The carrying amounts of intangible assets can be reconciled as follows:   
R’000 
2015

Carrying value at the 
beginning of the year Additions Amortisation 

for the year
Carrying value at the 

end of the year
Accounting & general software - 71              71                    -
Reclassifi cation from computer equipment to 
intangible assets - 2 2 -

Monitoring & evaluation system 2 137                    
141 543 1 735

2 137 214 616 1 735

R’000
Restated 2014

Carrying value at the 
beginning of the year Additions Amortisation 

for the year
Carrying value at the 

end of the year
Accounting & general software - 84 84 -
Monitoring & evaluation system - 2 155 18 2 137

- 2 239 102 2 137
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9.  Property, Plant And Equipment
All assets of the GFA are non-cash generating assets.

Remaining useful lives of assets were estimated based on the general condition of the assets, as well as the technical 
specifications and usability thereof.  

No property, plant or equipment is pledged as security.

2015 2014
R’000 
Cost

Accumulated 
Depreciation

Carrying 
Value

R’000 
Cost

Accumulated 
Depreciation

Carrying 
Value

Computer - Equipment 751 402 349 815 496 319
Offi ce Equipment 1 143 828 315 1 135 757 378
Offi ce Furniture 2 661 1 641 1 020 2 616 1 403 1 213
Audio Visual Equipment 118 83 35 187 138 49
Small Assets 15 10 5 18 18 -
Leasehold Improvements 3 298 2 858 440 3 298 2 437 861

7 986 5 822 2 164 8 069 5 249 2 820

R’000
2015

Carrying 
value at the 
beginning of 

the year
Additions Capitalised 

Assets Transfers Disposals Depreciation 
for the year

Carrying 
value at the 
end of the 

year

Computer equipment 320 145 - 3 18 95 349
Offi ce equipment 376 23 26 - - 110 315
Offi ce furniture 1 213 68      - 2 1            258 1 020
Audio visual equipment 49 - - - - 14 35
Small assets - - 7 - - 2 5
Leasehold improvements 862 - - - - 422 440

2 820 236 33 5 19 901  2 164

Capitalised assets comprise of an asset transferred from GPT to GFA at no cost (R’000: 4) and assets of which the useful 
lives were reviewed and adjusted, thus impacting on the revaluation reserve (R’000: 29) as shown in the statement of 
changes in net assets.

R’000
2014

Carrying 
value at the  
beginning  
of the year

Additions Capitalised 
Assets Disposals Depreciation 

for the year

Carrying 
value at the 
end of the 

year
Computer Equipment 253 209 - 25 117 320
Offi ce Equipment 476 31 10 - 141 376
Offi ce Furniture 1 463 - 12 2 260 1 213
Audio Visual Equipment 63 - - - 14 49
Small Assets - - - - - -
Leasehold Improvements 1 292 - - - 430 862

3 547 240 22 27 962 2 820
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10.  Change In Accounting Estimate 
The following depreciable assets’ original remaining useful lives has been re-
estimated in the beginning of the current period to reflect the actual pattern 
of service potential derived from the assets:

Small Assets : 6 assets (Cost = R’000: 10) 

Office Equipment : 9 assets (Cost = R’000: 880)

Computer Equipment : 33 assets (Cost = R’000: 269)

The effect on the current and future periods will be an increase in the net 
assets value of R’000: 73 in the current period (written back from the prior year 
accumulated surplus) and an equal increase in the depreciation charges of 
R’000: 73 over the newly estimated useful lives of those assets.

11.  Categories Of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets 

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Financial Assets At 
Amortised Cost:

Non-current receivables 7 450 3 212
Current receivables      2 415 67
Cash and cash equivalents 91 619    76 270

 101 484    79 549

Financial Liabilities 

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Financial liabilities at 
Amortised cost:

Trade Payables 1 784  10 943

Trade payables shown as financial liabilities represent amounts not paid at 
year end and thus accrued for. 

12. Trade And Other Payables From Exchange Transactions
R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Accruals 1 784 10 943
Straight-lining payable 390 380
Gauteng Provincial Treasury - 2 131

2 174 13 454

13.  Leave Pay Provision
R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Leave pay provision 133 127
Leave pay accrual 234 389

367 516

The short-term portions of leave pay commitments are shown as an accrual, 
where provisions represent the long-term (longer than 12 months) liability to 
the GFA. 



Gauteng Funding Agency46

14.  Contractual Commitments
The entity has service delivery contracts that are cancellable on notice periods as stipulated in 
the contracts.  These liabilities will be paid from the operating budget for the next year.  The cost 
contracted but not yet incurred at statement of financial position date are as follows:

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Contracted 11 588 7 223

Details of the 31 March 2015 contracted commitments are as follows:

Expense Item Service Provider R’000

Designing & printing booklets & folders Hotspot Marketing 54
Feasibility studies Indigo Kulani Group 340
Feasibility studies Utho 182
Feasibility studies                           DEC 3 800
Feasibility study Aurecon South Africa 3 226
Feasibility study Safi ri     3 029
Financial model Gencap 287
Maintenance and repairs Kamvelase 5
Personnel recruitment Strategic Personnel 274
Signage of GFA Intouch Communications 148
Training Torque IT 4
Wall banners Grey Dot Communication 19
Web design and development Beezworx CC 220
TOTAL 11 588          

As per the operational plans of GFA, all these contracts should be concluded and paid before 
31 March 2016.

15.  Lease Commitment: Building
The entity leases property under a non-cancellable contract.  Minimum lease payments on 
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Less than one year 5 404 5 003
More than one year, not greater than fi ve years             - 5 404

5 404 10 407
The term of the lease is 3 years and ends 31 March 2016.  Lease rental payments escalate by 
8% annually and are payable monthly in advance. 

16.  Transfer Payments
A transfer payment is received annually from Gauteng Provincial Treasury (GPT), the controlling 
entity of GFA.  This transfer payment is used to cover the operating costs of the GFA for the year 
and amounted to R50 million.  During the latter part of the financial year, a second transfer 
payment of R25 million was made by GPT to GFA to create the Project Preparation Facility (PPF). 

17.  Other Income
R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Interest received on rental deposit 238 204
Interest received on bank balance 3 065 -
Rental sub-lease income 1 491 746
Leave paid and accrued 155 -
Other income 6 -

4 955 950 
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18. Staff Costs
R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Basic salaries 12 525 11 665
Employer contribution: medical 133 137
Employer contribution: pension 918 844
Performance bonus 279 -
Leave paid and accrued 6 141

13 861 12 787

19.  Depreciation And Amortisation
R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Depreciation: Property, plant and equipment 901 962
Depreciation of computer equipment 95 117
Depreciation of offi ce equipment 110 141
Depreciation of offi ce furniture 258 260
Depreciation of audio visual equipment 14 14
Depreciation of small assets 2 -
Depreciation of leasehold improvements 422 430

Amortisation:  Intangible assets 616 102
TOTAL 1 517 1 064

20.  Other Expenditure
Other expenditure includes the following items:

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Audit Fees 573 527
Audit Fees 548 527
Financial & Accounting Consulting Expenses 25 -

Lease Expense 5 501 5 605
Property Lease Payment 5 013 5 013
Rent - Lease Operational Costs 488 592

Consulting - Financial Model 123 -
Courier Services - 2
Entertainment 55 79
IT Consumables 137 91
Legal Fees 37 -
Loss On Auction Of Fixed Assets 5 -
Loss On Write-Off Of Fixed Assets 4 27
Marketing 500 278
Printing 353 265
Recruitment Costs 328 -
Repair And Maintenance Cost 65 39
Security Cost 15 11
Staff Training 451 266
Subscriptions 51 53
Telephone Expenses 368 374
Travel 117 506
Venues and Facilities 160 932
Other Costs 106 34
TOTAL 8 949 9 089
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21.  Taxation  
No provision for taxation has been made in the financial statements, as 
the GFA is not a tax paying entity. (The entity, as part of the Department of 
Treasury, is exempt, as per S10 of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act 58 of 1962)).

22.  Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities
R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Surplus for the year 32 277 5 914
Non-cash movements 1 372 1 091

Depreciation and amortisation 1 517 1 064
Loss on auction of assets 5 -
Change in leave pay accrual (155) -
Change in leave pay provision 6 -
Loss on write-off of fi xed assets 4 27
Gain on fi xed assets (5) -

33 649 7 005
Changes in working capital: (17 867) 6 509

(Increase)/decrease in current and non-current 
receivables (6 587) (271)

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (11 280) 6 780

Net cash fl ows from operating activities 15 782 13 514

23.  Related Parties And Related Party Transactions
a. The GFA is a trading entity of Gauteng Provincial Treasury; therefore 

Gauteng Provincial Treasury is considered a related party. The 
following transactions took place between GPT and the GFA:

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Transfer payment 50 000 50 000
PPF Capitalisation 25 000 -

75 000 50 000

The salaries of the GFA is run on the system of the GPT and paid by GPT 
every month.  GFA then refunds the amounts paid on behalf of GFA to 
GPT.

b. GFA sub-lets the ground floor of 82 Grayston Drive, Sandton to the 
DAV Centre, which forms part of Gauteng Department of Finance.  
(Refer to note 5, 6 and 16).  This is an arms-length transaction.

c. The City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality (COJ) is a debtor 
of the GFA through a co-funding agreement and thus a related 
party.  A co-funding agreement between GFA and COJ was entered 
into for the feasibility studies done on a waste treatment project. 

d. The GFA is conducting feasibility studies on behalf of Gauteng 
Provincial and Local government.  These Departments and 
Municipalities/Regional Councils are, by nature of the transactions, 
related parties.

Identified related parties for 2014/2015 for feasibility work performed 
are:

• Gauteng Department of Infrastructure Development
• Gauteng Department of Economic Development
• City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality
• West Rand District Municipality
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e. The compensation paid for management is shown below:

Senior management emoluments:

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Head of GFA: PH Seabi 1 864 1 739
Basic Salary 1 014 932
Non Pensionable Allowance 691 667    
Employee Contribution: Medical Aid 19 19
Employee Contribution: Pension 132 121
Subsistence Allowance 8 -

Chief Financial Offi cer: R Kruger 1 202 750
Basic Salary 1 112 747
Non Pensionable Allowance 63 3
Pension 27 -

Financial Manager:  RV Molate 966 858
Basic Salary 646 599
Non Pensionable Allowance 193 171
Employee Contribution: Medical Aid - 10
Employee Contribution: Pension 84 78
Performance Bonus 43 -

Manager - Administration:  MZ Hamilton 849 901
Basic Salary 482 831
Employee Contribution: Pension 63           70                 
Performance Bonus 45                -
Non Pensionable Allowance 259 -

Manager - Stakeholder Management:  AJN Kitime 1 313 1 189
Basic Salary 893 832
Non Pensionable Allowance 192 179
Service Bonus (Salary Structuring) 112 70
Employee Contribution: Pension 116  108

Manager - Strategy & Monitoring: L Tladinyane 1 105 998
Basic Salary 629 595
Non Pensionable Allowance 338 326
Incidental Costs 6 -
Employee Contribution: Pension 82 77
Performance Bonus 50 -

Project Manager – Project Development: EB Marais 1 259 1 137
Basic salary 721 682
Non Pensionable Allowance 125 110
Employee Contribution: Medical Aid 42 39
Employee Contribution: Pension 94 89
Home Owner Allowance 160 160
Service Bonus (Salary Structuring) 60 57
Performance Bonus 57 -

Project Accountant - Structured Finance: Y Huang 1 337 1 189
Basic Salary 893 832
Non Pensionable Allowance 383 357
Subsistence Allowance 2 -
Performance Bonus 59 -



Gauteng Funding Agency50

24.  Fruitless And Wasteful Expenditure
There is no fruitless and wasteful expenditure for the current financial year. 

R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure:
Opening balance: 6 211 6 211

Add:  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year - -
Less:  Prior year amounts condoned 6 211 -

TOTAL - 6 211

Details of Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure condoned: R’000
2015Incident Condoned by

The GFA has incurred fruitless expenditure in prior 
fi nancial years due to offi ce space rented but not 
utilised. The GFA has resolved the matter by sub-
letting unutilised space in subsequent years.

Head of Department:  
Gauteng Provincial 
Treasury

6 211

25.  Irregular Expenditure

Reconciliation of Irregular Expenditure: R’000
2015

R’000
2014

Opening Balance: - -
Add:  Irregular Expenditure Current Year 13 156 -
Less:  Prior Year Amounts Condoned - -

TOTAL 13 156 -

Details of irregular expenditure – current year: R’000
2015

Incident Discliplinary Steps Taken / 
Criminal Proceedings 

Irregular expenditure occurred as a result 
of non-compliance with Supply Chain 
management policy.

No disciplinary actions or any 
steps have been taken 13 156

26.  Contingencies
There are no contingencies to report.
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27.  Prior Year Errors
A. It was discovered that Intangible assets in the form of a Monitoring and Evaluation system was 

expensed and not capitalised in the prior year.  In correcting this error, the following balances 
in the financial statements were restated:

R’000
Disclosed

2014

R’000
Correction
Increase / 
(Decrease)

R’000
Restated

2014

Statement of Financial Position:

Understatement of intangible assets 
(Net asset value); cost r2 155 - 2 137 2 137

Understatement of accumulated surplus  68 399 2 137 70 536

Statement of Financial Performance:

Understatement of depreciation and amortisation 1 046 18 1 064

Overstatement of project development fees 24 251 (2 155) 22 096

Understatement of surplus for the year 3 777 2 137 5 914

Statement of Changes in Net Assets:

Understatement of surplus for the year 3 777 2 137 5 914

Cash Flow Statement:

Cash fl ows from operating activities:
Payments overstatement of payment to suppliers

27 531 (2 155) 25 376

Cash fl ows from investing activities:
Overstatement of acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
(included intangible assets – software)

325 84 241

Understatement of acquisition of intangible assets (was 
included in above; balance = 2155 + 84)

- 2 239 2 239

B. In the 2013/2014 financial statement, surpluses pertaining to the restatement of useful lives of 
assets (conversion from GAAP to GRAP) was erroneously disclosed as a “revaluation surplus”.  
This classification was rectified in the 2014/2015 year.  (Refer to “Statement of changes in net 
assets”).

28.  Subsequent Events
In the 2014/2015 financial year, a provincial government component, called Gauteng Infrastructure 
Financing Agency (GIFA) was proclaimed in terms of the Public Service Act, 1994, amending Part B of 
Schedule 3, issued under GNR 69 GG 38088 of 17 October 2014.

The GIFA exists as a named legal entity, but has not been fully established as at 31 March 2015.  The 
GIFA has been established with the intention of transferring all operations of the GFA into it, and then 
disestablishing the GFA as a trading entity as per Treasury Regulation 19.9 (Closure of a trading entity).

The core business of GFA and GIFA is the same, but the financial statements have been prepared with 
reference to GRAP 105 (Transfer of function between entities under common control).  

All assets, liabilities, funds and surpluses will be transferred to GIFA at carrying value as at 30 June 2015, 
which is the planned date of transfer for disestablishment of GFA and establishment of GIFA. 

A Transitional arrangement was approved by the Head of Department of Gauteng Treasury for all GIFA’s 
procurement, contracts and payments to be construed through the GFA until such time that GIFA is 
fully established and GFA is disestablished. All activities of GIFA that was paid for by GFA have been 
recorded as part of the GFA financial statements.  
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Section 4: Annual Performance Report 2014/15
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Performance Against Targets

This sections provides information on performance against targets and it provides the deviations and reasons for 
deviations that might have occurred in 2014/15.

Programme 1: Project Development

Strategic Objectives
Performance 

Indicator 2014/15 
Planned Targets

Performance Against Targets

Re
a
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ns

 fo
r 

D
e

vi
a
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n
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d
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ns

2014/15 
Planned  Targets

2014/15 
Actual  Targets

STRATEGIC GOAL: To ensure that GPG develops infrastructure projects to bankable proposals that will attract funding from various 
sources.
1.1 To establish a framework for 

Central Point for coordination 
of infrastructure projects to 
promote better planning and 
funding synergy for strategic 
infrastructure projects across 
all spheres government in the 
province 

Effective framework 
for Central Point 
for coordination of 
infrastructure projects

Framework for Central 
Point for coordination 
of infrastructure projects 
developed and 
implemented

The Framework for Central Point 
for coordination of infrastructure 
projects was  developed and 
implemented.

STRATEGIC GOAL: To ensure that GPG develops infrastructure projects to bankable proposals that will attract funding from various 
sources.
2.1 To establish a Project 

Preparation Facility (PPF) 
that will provide sustainable 
funding for project 
development  

Effective Project 
Preparation Facility

Project Preparation Facility 
established

Project Preparation was Facility 
established.

2.2 To develop a Project Filtration 
Criteria to identify strategic 
infrastructure projects that 
will have greater impact on 
provincial priorities

Effective Project 
Filtration Criteria

Project Filtration Criteria 
developed and 
implemented

Project Filtration Criteria was 
developed and implemented.

2.3 To source and conduct 
feasibility studies to 
determine viability and the 
mix of funding required for 
infrastructure projects

Number of feasibility 
studies sourced and 
conducted 

5 project feasibility studies 
conducted and Project 
Appraisal Reports (PARs) 
completed

5 project feasibility studies were 
conducted and Project Appraisal 
Reports were completed:

Completed Feasibilities:
1. West Rand Regional Airport
2. Sedibeng/ West Rand Waste 
to Energy  
3. TIH: EB2
4. TIH: EB3
5. Kopanong Precinct Project
6. Gauteng Green Agenda 

Programme (Tri-gen and Solar 
Rooftop Panels)

Completed PARs:
1. Gauteng Green Agenda 
projects
2. West Rand Regional Airport
3. TIH: EB2
4. TIH: EB3
5. West Rand Waste to Energy 
Project
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Programme 2: Structured Finance

Strategic Objectives Performance 
Indicator

Performance Against Targets
Reasons for 

Deviation Remedial Plans2014/15 Planned 
Targets

2014/15 Actual 
Targets

STRATEGIC GOAL: To become a centre of excellence that applies various funding models for infrastructure fi nancing solutions
3.1 To explore funding 

models and best 
practices in fi nancing 
GPG infrastructure 
projects

Number of funding 
models tested and 
applied

Develop funding models 
infrastructure projects

Financial models for  
infrastructure projects were 
developed: 
• Sedibeng / West Rand 

Waste to Energy Project
• West Rand Regional 

Airport Project 
Number of projects 
fi nanced through 
alternative funding

2 projects fi nanced 
through alternative 
funding

Target was not achieved. There was a change in 
the approach on how 
the market would be 
engaged to fi nance 
projects through 
alternative funding   

The funder engagement 
strategy and plan has 
been developed and 
plans are in place to 
market the bankable 
projects to potential 
invetors through 
investor roadshows and 
promotional events.

STRATEGIC GOAL: To ensure that GPG develops infrastructure projects to bankable proposals that will attract funding from various sources.
3.2 To establish fi nancial 

structuring mechanisms 
and toolkits to ensure 
fi nancial close

Effective toolkits for 
reaching fi nancial close

Develop toolkit for 
reaching fi nancial close

Toolkit for reaching 
fi nancial close was 
developed.

Effective fi nancial 
structuring guidelines

Establish fi nancial 
structuring guidelines 
in line with applicable 
legislation

Financial structuring 
guidelines were 
established in line with 
applicable legislation. The 
guidelines are projects 
specifi c.

3.3 To create a repository 
for data and relevant 
information that could be 
utilized for project and 
contracting for strategic 
infrastructure projects

Effective repository on 
access to funding for 
infrastructure projects 
from wide sources of 
funding contracting of 
bankable projects

Repository on access to 
funding for infrastructure 
projects from wide 
sources of funding 
bankable projects

Repository on access to 
funding for infrastructure 
projects from wide sources 
of funding institutions  was 
created. 

STRATEGIC GOAL: To establish a network of investor partnerships and build investor confi dence in GPG initiated projects
4.1 To develop an 

Investment Memorandum 
to profi le GPG’s strategic 
projects and attract 
investor interest

Effective Investment 
Memorandum

GFA Investment 
Memorandum developed 
and implemented in line 
with the project pipelines

GFA Investment 
Memorandum was 
developed and 
implemented in line with 
the project pipelines.

4.2 To develop Investor 
Engagement Plan 
to promote viable 
infrastructure projects

Effective Funder 
Engagement Plan

Funder Engagement 
Plan developed and 
implemented in line with 
bankable projects

Funder Engagement 
Plan developed and 
implemented in line with 
bankable projects.

Number of Investor 
Roadshows conducted

1 Investor Roadshows 
organised in line with 
bankable projects

1 Investor Roadshow 
organised in line with 
bankable projects as part 
of the GPG international 
investor roadshows (Dubai)

STRATEGIC GOAL: To ensure effi cient and economic contracting for infrastructure projects in a manner that GPG realises the socio-
economc benefi ts

5.1 To provide advice 
and support to GPG 
department with 
procurement and 
contracting for strategic 
infrastructure projects

Number of projects 
supported on 
procurement and 
contracting of bankable 
projects

Departments supported 
on procurement and 
contracting of bankable 
projects

Departments were 
supported on procurement 
and contracting of 
bankable projects on 
the following 3 projects 
supported on procurement:
• Kopanong Precinct 
• Trigeneration Plant
• Rooftop Solar Panel

5.2 To monitor 
implementation and 
evaluate the socio-
economic impact of the 
projects in line with the 
provincial priorities

Number of monitoring 
and evaluation reports 
produced

Monitoring and 
evaluation reports 
produced

Monitoring and evaluation 
reports were produced.
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Programme 3: Administration

Performance Indicator
Performance Against Targets

Reasons for 
Deviation Remedial Plans2014/15 Planned

Targets
2014/15 Actual

Targets

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: To provide sound strategic direction and leadership to the GFA through credible Strategic Plans, Annual 
Performance Plans and reliable management of GFA’s performance

6.1 Credible Strategic and Annual 
Performance Plans that are 
aligned to the Gauteng Provincial 
Government’s priorities

5 Year Strategic Plan and 2015/16 
Annual Performance Plan (APP) 
approved and implemented

5 Year Strategic Plan and 2015/16 
Annual Performance Plan were 
approved and implemented.

Credible and reliable Performance 
Information Management 
Framework

Review and implement the 
Performance Information 
Management Framework

Performance Information 
Management Framework was 
reviewed and implemented: 

Number of performance reports 
produced

4 Quarterly Performance Reports 
and 1 Annual Performance Report 
submitted within the prescribed 
times 

4 Quarterly Performance Reports 
and 1 Annual Performance 
Report were submitted within the 
prescribed times.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: To support the GFA through effective communications, marketing and stakeholder relations management
6.2 Comprehensive and implementable  

Integrated Marketing and 
Communications Strategy of GFA

Develop and implement the 
Communications Strategy in line 
with the Government Component’s 
Business Case 

Communications Strategy was 
developed and implemented in line 
with the Government Component’s 
Business Case.

Effi cient organisation of the 
Gauteng Funding Fair (GFF) 

Gauteng Funding Fair: 
Infrastructure focus

Target was not achieved. The Gauteng Funding 
Fair was postponed and 
aligned to the GPG’s new 
approach of engaging 
the market. The funding 
fair will therefore be 
integrated into the 
Gauteng Infrastructure 
Investment Conference 
that will be hosted in June 
2015. 

GFA is involved in the 
planning of the Gauteng 
Infrastructure Investment 
Conference whereby the 
concept of funding will be 
form integral part of the 
conference.

Comprehensive and implementable 
Stakeholder Management Plan

Review and implement Stakeholder 
Relations Management Plan 

Stakeholder Relations Management 
Plan was reviewed and 
implemented.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: To ensure good governance and a sound control environment through relevant fi nance policies, in-year 
monitoring, risk and security management

6.3 Type of audit report received Achieve a clean audit report Achieved a clean audit for 2013/14 
fi nancial year.

Number of credible and accurate 
annual fi nancial statements  
submitted within the prescribed 
times

4 Quarterly Financial Statements 
approved and submitted to 
Gauteng Provincial Treasury within 
the prescribed times

3 Quarterly Financial Statements 
were approved and submitted 
to Gauteng Provincial Treasury 
within the prescribed times. The 4th 
Quarter Financial Statement was 
submitted as part of the Annual 
Financial Statement.

Credible and effective fi nance 
policies, business process, 
procedures and systems

Review and update GIFA policies, 
business processes, procedures 
and systems in-line with Provincial 
Treasury policies 

GIFA policies, business processes, 
procedures and systems were 
reveiwed and updated in-line with 
Provincial Treasury policies. 

Credible and Reliable and Risk 
Management strategies

Review and update GFA’s Risk 
Management Strategy 

GFA’s Risk Management Strategy 
was reviewed and updated.

Effective and effi cient contract 
management

All contracts concluded with GFA 
effectively managed  

All contracts concluded with GFA 
were effectively managed.

Effective and effi cient management 
of the Project Preparation Facility

Management of the Project 
Preparation Facility in accordance 
with the prescribed regulations

Project Preparation Facility was 
managed in accordance with the 
prescribed regulations. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: To ensure ICT governance within the GIFA in line with the Corporate Governance of ICT Framework (CGIF)
6.4 Level of ICT governance within 

the GFA
Review ICT Policy Framework
Implement the ICT governance 
plans and charter

ICT Policy Framework were 
reviewed and approved.
ICT governance plans and charter 
were implemented. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: To improve remote access to GFA’s business applications
6.5 Level of improvement of access to 

GFA’s business applications
Business wide remote access 
to GFA’s business applications 
implemented 

Business wide remote access to 
GFA’s business applications was 
implemented. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: To ensure the continuity of GFA’s business in the event of disaster by constantly testing the credibility of 
established business continuity plans

6.6 Credible and reliable Business 
Continuity Plan Management Plan 
and Disaster Recovery Plan

Memorandum of Understanding 
with GPT for GFA transfer of 
functions in the event of disaster 
completed 
Review and implement GFA’s 
Business Continuity Plan

Memorandum of Understanding with 
GPT for GFA transfer of functions 
in the event of disaster was 
completed.
GFA’s Business Continuity Plan was 
reviewed and implemented. 
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Performance Indicator
Performance Against Targets

Reasons for 
Deviation Remedial Plans2014/15 Planned

Targets
2014/15 Actual

Targets

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE To provide effi cient management of GFA facilities in compliance with relevant legislation, regulations and 
policies on facilities management

6.7 Effi cient management of GFA 
facilities and compliance with 
relevant legislation, regulations 
and policies on facilities 
management

GFA facilities managed effi ciently 
and in compliance with relevant 
legislation, regulations and 
policies on facilities management

GFA facilities were managed 
effi ciently and in compliance with 
relevant legislation, regulations and 
policies on facilities management.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE To establish an effi cient and developmental human resources management for the GFA

6.8 Comprehensive and 
implementable HR Development 
Plan for GFA

Develop and implement the HR 
Development Plan  

HR Development Plan was 
developed and implemented. 

Implementable Human Resource 
Development Plan

Implement the Training and 
Development Plan

Training and Development Plan 
was developed and  implemented. 

Effective Performance 
Management of GFA staff in 
compliance to GPG Policy on 
Performance Management

Effective Performance 
Management in compliance to 
GPG Policy on Performance 
Management

Performance Management was 
implemented in compliance to 
GPG Policy on Performance 
Management. 

Effective change management 
programme

Change Management 
Programme for GFA as a GC 
developed and implemented

Change Management Programme 
for GFA was developed and 
implemented.
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Section 5: Outlook for 2015/16
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The GFA’s  working environment has experienced changes with the most notable change being the 
promulgation of the government component in terms of the Public Service Act by the President of the 
Republic of South Africa. In the coming year the General Notice on the Operations and Administration 
of the government component will be published in the Provincial Gazette and the existing trading entity 
will be disestablished. Consequently, all operations of the GIFA which, by transitional arrangement is 
operating through GFA, will be streamlined and underpinned by systems, processes, procedures and 
best practices to enable the government component to function optimally going forward. The revision 
of the organisational structure and the  capacitation of the government component with appropriate 
skills will enable GIFA to add value to its clients in the preparation of infrastructure projects. 

The GPG imperative of the Ten Pillar Programme in the new term has recommitted to greater emphasis 
on infrastructure and economic growth. The GFA is already taking part in the Gauteng Infrastructure 
Coordinating Committee’s processes of coordinating infrastructure development in the province. In the 
coming year the GIFA will support the GICC by developing those game changer projects that have the 
potential of raising funding from private sources. Such projects have already been identified and the 
GIFA will conduct feasibility studies and release bankable projects to the market in the coming financial 
year. The GIFA has set a target of at least five projects that would be financed through alternative 
sources each year. 

In the coming year the stakeholder relations will be strengthened whereby GIFA will roll out its investor 
engagement plan, update the investment memorandum, take part in relevant conferences, roll out 
roadshows in municipalities and launch its website. 

Finally, the strategic objectives were revised in 2014/15 with new MTEF targets. The table on page 60 
outlines the Strategic Goals and Key Deliverables in the coming financial year.

Key Deliverables for 2015 / 16
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Table: 2015/16 Strategic Objectives and Key Deliverables

Strategic Objectives Key Deliverable 

To ensure a sustainable pipeline of strategic 
infrastructure projects that is catalysts for socio-
economic development through a coordinated 
process in the province.

Review the Framework for Central Point for coordination of infrastructure 
projects developed and implemented

To ensure that GPG develops infrastructure projects 
to bankable proposals that will attract funding from 
various sources.

Implement the Project Preparation Facility

Review and implement the Project Filtration Criteria

Source 5 projects from departments, municipalities and agencies of Gauteng 

Conduct 5 projects feasibility studies and complete Project Appraisal Reports 

To become a centre of excellence that applies various 
funding models for infrastructure fi nancing solutions

Review and test funding models 

Finance 5 projects through alternative funding

Review and maintain toolkit

To establish a network of investor partnerships and 
build investor confi dence in GPG initiated projects

Review and update the Investment Memorandum in line with the project 
pipeline
Conclude partnerships with private investors 

Conduct at least 2 Investor Roadshows 

To ensure effi cient and economic contracting for 
infrastructure projects in a manner that GPG realises 
the socio-economc benefi ts

Support departments on procurement and contracting of bankable projects

Produce Monitoring and evaluation reports 

To provide effective leadership, management and 
administrative support to the GIFA business units 
and the Head of GIFA.

Develop the 2016/17 Annual Performance Plan 

Review and implement the Performance Information Management 
Framework
Review and implement the Marketing and Communications Strategy 

Review and implement Stakeholder Relations Management Plan 

To provide effective leadership, management and 
administrative support to the GIFA business units 
and the Head of GIFA.

Achieve a clean audit report

Review and update GIFA policies, business processes, procedures and 
systems in-line with Provincial Treasury policies
Develop GIFA’s Risk Management Strategy

Management of the Project Preparation Facility in accordance with the 
prescribed regulations
Ensure continuous improvement of ICT systems in line with the Corporate 
Governance of ICT Policy Framework 
Manage GIFA facilities effi ciently and in compliance with relevant 
legislation, regulations and policies on facilities management

Review the HR Development Plan
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